
 Agenda

Page 1

Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks

Time and Date
9.30 am on Thursday, 21st January, 2016

Place
Committee Room 2 - Council House

Public Business

1. Apologies  

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6)

(a) To agree the minutes of the Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, 
Sports and Parks meeting held on 10 December 2015.

(b) Matters arising

4. Report in response to a petition regarding smoking in Hall Lane  (Pages 7 
- 12)

Report of the Executive Director of Place

(Note: Councillor Ruane, a Henley Ward Councillor and the petition organiser 
have been invited to the meeting for the consideration of this item. 
Representatives of the University Hospital have also been invited in for the 
consideration of this item.)

5. Response to a petition regarding Anti-Social Behaviour in the 
Strathmore Avenue area  (Pages 13 - 24)

Report of the Executive Director of Place

(Note: Councillor N Akhtar, a St Michaels Ward Councillor and the petition 
organiser have been invited to the meeting for the consideration of this item.)

6. Community Grant Fund - 2015/16 Round Two Award Decisions  (Pages 
25 - 48)

Report of the Executive Director of People

7. Outstanding Issues Report  (Pages 49 - 52)

Public Document Pack



Page 2

Report of the Executive Director of Resources

8. Any Other Business  

To consider any other items of business which the Cabinet Member decides to 
take as a matter of urgency because of the special circumstances involved. 

Private Business
Nil

Chris West, Executive Director, Resources, Council House Coventry

Wednesday, 13 January 2016

Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is 
Usha Patel Tel: 024 7683 3198    Email: usha.patel@coventry.gov.uk

Membership: Councillor A Khan (Cabinet Member)

By invitation: Councillor Birdi (Shadow Cabinet Member)

Please note: a hearing loop is available in the committee rooms

If you require a British Sign Language interpreter for this meeting 
OR it you would like this information in another format or 
language please contact us.

Usha Patel
Telephone: (024) 7683 3198
e-mail: usha.patel@coventry.gov.uk

mailto:usha.patel@coventry.gov.uk


– 1 –

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks 

held at 10.00 am on Thursday, 10 December 2015

Present:
Members: Councillor A Khan (Chair)

Councillor J Birdi (Shadow Cabinet Member)

By invitation: Councillor A Andrews 

Employees (by Directorate):
Place:
Resources:

J Adams, C Hickin
U Patel

In Attendance: Mr Ali (for item 24 below)

Public Business

22. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

23. Minutes 

The minutes of the Cabinet Member for Culture Leisure, Sports and Parks meeting 
held on 12 November 2015 were signed as a true record. There were no matters 
arising. 

24. Update report in response to a petition concerning a property in Earlsdon 
Ward 

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Executive Director of Place which 
provided an update report in response to a petition concerning a property in 
Earlsdon Ward. 

The report provided an update on actions taken since the Cabinet Member for 
Policing and Equalities meeting held on 23 July 2015 in response to a petition 
received on 3 July 2014 (Minute 8/15 refers). The petition bearing 71 signatures 
was sponsored by Councillor Andrews, an Earlsdon Ward Councillor and 
requested the City Council to take action regarding the poor condition of a property 
on the Earlsdon Ward and the adverse impact it was having on the surrounding 
neighbourhood. 

The Cabinet Member for Policing and Equalities had previously endorsed actions 
taken under Section 215 of The Town & Country Planning Act, authorised by 
Planning Committee on 21 August 2014, requiring the owner to carry out 
improvements to his property. 

Following non-compliance with the Section 215 Notice, the owner of the property 
was prosecuted and he pleaded guilty to the offence at Nuneaton Magistrates 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



– 2 –

Court on 12 May 2015. He was fined £1500 and ordered to pay £892 costs plus a 
victim surcharge of £120. The Court commented that the matter had gone on for 
far too long and any materials which were stored in the garden and were not 
immediately needed, should be stored elsewhere. 

Since the prosecution the owner of the property has been in regular contact with 
officers from the Planning Enforcement Team and considerable progress has been 
made towards complying with the requirements of the Notice. The vast majority of 
the building materials and equipment previously stored across the site have been 
removed, the partially demolished bay window has been reinstated, the herris 
fencing removed and the land levels within the rear garden area returned to those 
which existed previously. 

Councillor Andrews, an Earlsdon Ward Councillor and the petition organiser 
attended the meeting and expressed their sincere gratitude for the work 
undertaken by Council Officers in resolving this matter. They were grateful that 
officers would be monitoring the site to ensure that it did not start to deteriorate. 

Furthermore, Councillor Andrews and Mr Ali paid tribute to the work undertaken by 
the late Councillor Townshend Cabinet Member for Policing and Equalities in 
initiating the work and progressing the matter and requested that this be formally 
recorded.

RESOLVED that the Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure Sports and Parks:

1. Endorses the action already taken to address the conditions at this 
property.

2. Requests that officers from the Planning Enforcement Team continue 
to monitor the property and work with the owner to achieve full 
compliance with the Notice. 

3.  Requests that officers from the Planning Enforcement Team keep 
Councillor Andrews briefed on an informal basis to ensure that the 
situation is being monitored and does not deteriorate. 

25. Outstanding Issues Report 

The Cabinet Member noted a report of the Executive Director of Resources that 
identified those issues on which further reports had been requested and were 
outstanding so that progress could be monitored. 

26. Any Other Business 

There were no other items of business.

(Meeting closed at 10.15 am)

Page 4



 Public report
Cabinet Member Report

Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks 21 January 2016

Name of Cabinet Member: 
Councillor A Khan

Director Approving Submission of the report:
Executive Director of Place 

Ward(s) affected:
Henley

Title: Report in response to a petition regarding smoking in Hall Lane

Is this a key decision?
No

Executive Summary:

A petition containing 322 signatures was submitted to the City Council on 7th July 2015.  The 
petition outlines residents’ concerns in relation to customers and employees from the University 
Hospital, Coventry & Warwickshire NHS Trust at Walsgrave, smoking in the street and generally 
causing a nuisance with noise and litter.

They requested that the Council make Hall Lane a smoke free street and that the Hospital take 
responsibility for the results of their no smoking policy. 

Cabinet Member, at a meeting on 24th September 2015, deferred any formal decision and gave 
the Hospital an opportunity to determine how they proposed to reduce, or eliminate the adverse 
effect of smokers gathering in Hall Lane. It was noted that the vast majority of smokers were 
hospital employees.

Recommendations:
The Cabinet Member is recommended to:-
 

(1) Consider any response received from University Hospital, Coventry & Warwickshire NHS 
Trust and request that the petition be passed to them so that they might work with local 
residents to achieve a mutually convenient solution.

(2) Request that Neighbourhood Enforcement Officers routinely patrol and enforce any 
littering caused by smokers specifically in Hall Lane.

List of Appendices included:

None

Background papers:

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



None

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?
No

Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?
No

Will this report go to Council?
No

Page 6



Report title: Report in response to a petition regarding Smoking in Hall Lane

1. Context (or background)

1.1 A petition containing 322 signatures was submitted to the City Council, sponsored by 
Councillor Ed Ruane on 7th July 2015.  The petition outlines residents’ concerns in relation 
to customers and employees from the University Hospital, Coventry & Warwickshire NHS 
Trust at Walsgrave, smoking in Hall Lane and generally causing a nuisance with noise and 
litter. The petitioners are requesting that the Council make Hall Lane a smoke free street 
and that the Hospital take responsibility for the results of their no smoking policy.

1.2 On 1 January 2015 the Hospital brought in a smoking ban on its entire site, for employees 
and visitors. Since the introduction of the ban Hall Lane residents state that there was an 
immediate influx of people from the Hospital site smoking in their road.  On occasion it is 
claimed that up to 30 people can congregate, causing nuisance from noise and litter. 

1.3 The people congregating in Hall Lane, smoking and engaging in normal conversation, whilst 
causing an apparent nuisance to local residents, are not in breach of legislation. Littering 
though, is a criminal offence. Since 1st April 2015 officers have issued 17 fixed penalty 
notices for littering in Hall Lane, 11 of the offences were caused by hospital employees.

1.4 Cabinet Member for Policing and Equalities on 24th September 2015, deferred any formal 
decision and gave the Hospital an opportunity to determine how they proposed to reduce, or 
eliminate the adverse effect of smokers gathering in Hall Lane.

2 Options considered and recommended proposal

2.1    The Council could potentially introduce a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) under the 
Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 to prohibit smoking in Hall Road; 
contravening the PSPO would result in the issuing of a fixed penalty notice (FPN) and 
prosecution in the event of non-payment. However, this is viewed as inappropriate for the 
following reasons:

 The area covered by the PSPO. To be effective the area covered by the PSPO 
would have to surround the hospital and be sufficiently large to deter smoking. 
Banning smoking in Hall Lane alone would only move the problem to a different 
locality surrounding the hospital. Unless the designated area was sufficiently large, 
hospital employees and visitors would merely move to the edge of the designated 
geographic area in the PSPO before smoking. 

 Potential to criminalise local people. The PSPO is non-specific and would also 
apply to local residents and their visitors too. Consequently, somebody coming out of 
their house and smoking in the street would be committing an offence if it was within 
the area designated in the PSPO.

 Unlikely to be popular. If we were to introduce a PSPO, we would have to consult 
widely on its impact. Officers believe that there would be a substantial number of local 
people and organisations who would object to this course of action and view this 
action as disproportionate.

 Insufficient resource. The Council does not have adequate resources to patrol and 
enforce a PSPO of this description in what potentially would be a large geographic 
area.

2.3 The problems experienced by local residents in Hall Road began when the Hospital’s 
smoking policy was changed to prohibit smoking on its entire premise. Furthermore, the 
majority of the problem results from the Hospital’s own employees. It is likely therefore that 
any potential long term solution lies with the Hospital. Cabinet Member for Policing and 

Page 7



Equalities asked officers to write to the Hospital to determine how they proposed to 
reduce, or eliminate the adverse effect of smokers gathering in Hall Lane. At the time of 
writing this report, no formal response had been received from the hospital. If a response 
is received this will be brought to the meeting.

2.4 The Council recognises the inconvenience caused to residents in Hall Road. Cabinet 
Member is recommended to:

(1) Consider any response received from University Hospital, Coventry & Warwickshire NHS 
Trust and request that the petition be passed to them so that they might work with local 
residents to achieve a mutually convenient solution.

(2) Request that Neighbourhood Enforcement Officers routinely patrol and enforce any 
littering caused by smokers specifically in Hall Lane.

3 Results of consultation undertaken

3.1 The Council has consulted on this issue with the Hospital and West Midlands Police. It is 
believed that this is an issue best resolved by the Hospital with the residents in Hall Lane.

4 Timetable for implementing this decision

4.1 The petition can be passed from the Council to the Hospital following approval of this report.  

4.2 Neighbourhood Enforcement Officers are already routinely carrying out patrols in this area 
and litter enforcement is being enacted.

5 Comments from Executive Director of Resources

5.1 Financial implications

There are no direct financial costs as a result of the recommendations in this report.  

5.2 Legal implications
         The petition can be passed on from the Council to the Hospital following approval of this 

report.  It has been confirmed by legal services that this is permitted under the Council’s 
constitution.

6 Other implications
None

6.1 How will this contribute to the Council Plan (www.coventry.gov.uk/councilplan/)? 

Crime and Disorder 
Tackling crime and anti-social behaviour through partnership working is central to the        
delivery of the Community Safety Plan and Strategic Assessment 2014/15.  

6.2 How is risk being managed?

The Community Safety Officer(s) continues to monitor nuisance levels in the area. 
 

The Council continue to incorporate the area in their patrol strategies and work schedule 
and will monitor behaviour of individuals and the condition and cleanliness of the area.

6.3 What is the impact on the organisation?

Page 8

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilplan/


None

6.4 Equalities / EIA N/A 6.5 Implications for (or impact on) the environment

The purpose of taking action to address smoking in the street, in an attempt to improve the 
environment and wellbeing of the community.

6.6 Implications for partner organisations?
The multi-agency action plan outlines the individual and collective commitments from   
agencies to respond to the issues in the petition. 

Report author(s):
Liam Nagle

Name and job title:
Liam Nagle – Strategic Lead for Offender Management. 
Directorate:
People Directorate

Tel and email contact:
02476 832063  
Liam.Nagle@coventry.gov.uk
 

Contributor/approver 
name

Title Directorate or 
organisation

Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:
Craig Hickin Head of 

Environmental 
Services

Place 05.01.2016 08.01.2016

Usha Patel Governance 
Services Officer

Resources 05.01.2016 07.01.2016

Names of approvers for 
submission: (officers and 
members)
Finance: Cath Crosby Lead 

Accountant
Resources 05.01.2016 08.01.2016

Legal: Gill Carter Senior Solicitor Resources 05.01.2016 08.01.2016
HR: Jas Bilen Business 

Partner (Service 
Support)

Resources

Andrew Walster Assistant 
Director

Place

Martin Yardley Executive 
Director

Place

Members: Name

Cllr A. Khan Cabinet Member 
Culture, Leisure, 
Sports and 
Parks

07.01.2016 07.01.2016

This report is published on the Council's website:
www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings 

Page 9

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings


This page is intentionally left blank



 Public report
Cabinet Member Report

Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks 21 January 2016

Name of Cabinet Member: 
Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks – Councillor A Khan

Director Approving Submission of the report:
Executive Director – of Place 

Ward(s) affected:
St. Michael’s

Title: Response to a petition regarding Anti-Social Behaviour in the Strathmore Avenue area.  

Is this a key decision?
No

Executive Summary:

A petition of 86 signatures was presented to full council by Cllr Naeem Akhtar on the 8th 
September 2015.  The petition calls for the City Council and West Midlands Police to take action 
against those causing anti-social behaviour in the area, particularly around the St. Anne & All 
Saint Church and in the alleyways behind Strathmore Avenue. 

Petitioners report that people regularly congregate behind the church and in the nearby alleyways 
during the evenings and sometimes until late at night causing Anti-Social Behaviour and allegedly 
using drugs. 

Recommendations:

The Cabinet Member is recommended to:-
 
1. Note and endorse the action taken to date by officers of the City Council and West Midlands 

Police.  
2. Request West Midlands Police to:- 

   continue to dedicate patrols to the area, paying particular attention to the identified, streets, 
alleyways and open space around St Annes & All Saints Church.

   exercise their powers to obtain identities and disperse individuals in groups that are likely to 
cause public nuisance and/or offending behaviour, ensuring individuals are challenged 
about their behaviour where appropriate, but also have the opportunity for treatment and 
support.

3. Request that officers case manage individuals, through relevant forums and monitor 
behaviour and the effectiveness of interventions to support change as is appropriate.

4. Encourage residents to participate in a Community Speedwatch operation
5. Encourage residents to set up Neighbourhood Watch groups in the area.

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



List of Appendices included:
Appendix 1.   Action Plan for Strathmore Avenue and immediate area.

Background papers:
None

Other useful documents
None

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?
No

Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?
No

Will this report go to Council?
No

Page 12



Report title: Response to a petition regarding Anti-Social Behaviour in the Strathmore Avenue 
area.  

1. Context (or background)

1.1 A recent petition, of 86 signatories, regarding anti-social behaviour in the Strathmore 
Avenue area was submitted by Councillor Naeem Akhtar on the 8th September 2015. 
 

1.2 The lead petitioner was contacted and reported that the area, as a whole, is suffering from 
many issues which are contributing to its degradation and the safety of residents.  Some of 
the issues are anti-social behaviour, some are environmental and others are concerning the 
safety of residents.  Residents believe that people from outside of their neighbourhood are 
causing many of the issues; local people are feeling distressed and they have concerns for 
their safety.

1.3 In summary the residents have raised the following issues:

 Speeding vehicles, particularly along Acacia Avenue
 Highway and green spaces are littered with discarded rubbish
 Blocked drain gullies leading to road flooding
 Fly tipped and overgrown rear alleyways, with discarded drug materials
 Properties left to decline by absentee landlords
 Noise disruption from late night parties

2 Options considered and recommended proposal

2.1    The lead petitioner has been contacted by the Community Safety Officer and has been 
furnished with relevant contact details for the West Midlands Police, Coventry City Council 
and the Universities.  Following on from that, further actions have been taken as listed 
below.  

2.2    West Midlands Police have patrolled and monitored the area on a regular basis, engaging 
with the public.  There is a possibility of a Community Speedwatch in the area providing 
there are some community representatives willing to be trained and participate.  The 
identities of individuals causing issues are obtained and are shared with relevant forums to 
monitor individuals and offer support where appropriate.

2.3    Parking Attendants have visited the area and will continue to do so, they have recorded 
the following information for the area

        
          

Location:
Visits      

(Since 1.4.15) Vehicles Observed PCNs issued 

Strathmore Ave 17 23 17

Acacia Ave 55 29 22

Harper Rd 41 44 20

Seagrave Rd 6 8 4

Cornwall Rd 5 3 1

Page 13



  
2.4    Residents have been encouraged to set up Neighbourhood Watch groups.

2.5 The area is on a regular weekly cleansing schedule.  The street drains are on a schedule to 
be cleaned and inspected in line with the current schedule.  However all of the cleansing 
schedules are currently under review and may alter in the future.

2.6   Ownership of the alleyways in the area have been confirmed as private and are the 
responsibility of the landowners to clear and repair.  Enforcement Officers are supporting 
residents to address the issues within the private alleyways in the area.

2.7   Enforcement Officers are addressing issues with the absentee landlords regarding the state 
of repair of properties. Enforcement Officers are supporting residents to address the issues 
with the private alleyways in the area.

2.8   An alleyway clearance, using Community Payback, at Strathmore Avenue has been 
scheduled for January 2016.

2.9    Officers from the University, West Midlands Police and the City Council are working together 
in partnership to address the issues with students living in the City.  This is concentrated in 
the first few weeks of term but continues throughout the year.  

2.10  Coventry City Council recorded data from January 2015 to September 2015 shows no 
reports directly related to St Anne’s & All Saints Church.  In the direct area there is one 
report of an abandoned vehicle on Acacia Avenue.

2.11  Police data for the period January 2015 to September 2015 shows a total of 12 logs for 
Strathmore Avenue, these include 5 vehicle related crimes, 6 drug related crimes and 1 
burglary.  5 logs are recorded for Seagrave Road, these included 2 vehicle related logs, 1 
group of children playing in the street with a sling shot and 2 separate reports about a 
student party.  5 logs are recorded for Acacia Avenue these include 4 vehicle related logs 
and 1 drug related log.

3 Results of consultation undertaken

3.1 The lead petitioner has been consulted on the action plan and has agreed the actions.

4 Timetable for implementing this decision

4.1 The Community Safety Officer will monitor the ongoing issues of Community Safety in the 
area.  

5 Comments from Executive Director, Resources

5.1 Financial implications
There are no financial implications arising from this report, all costs will be met from core 
budgets. 

5.2 Legal implications
In the event that the suggested actions do not resolve the identified issues there are a 
number of legal enforcement options available to the Council including prosecution (where 
perpetrators can be identified). There are also a number of available powers contained 
within the Anti-social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 designed to tackle anti-social 
behaviour.

Page 14



6 Other implications
None

6.1 How will this contribute to the Council Plan (www.coventry.gov.uk/councilplan/)? 

Crime and Disorder 
Tackling crime and anti-social behaviour through partnership working is central to the        
delivery of the Community Safety Plan and Strategic Assessment 2014/15.  

6.2 How is risk being managed?

1. The Community Safety Officer continues to monitor crime and disorder levels in the area. 
 

2. Police and Council Officers continue to incorporate the area in their patrol strategies and 
work schedule and will monitor behaviour of individuals and the condition and cleanliness 
of the area.

6.3 What is the impact on the organisation?
None

6.4 Equalities / EIA 
N/A 

6.5 Implications for (or impact on) the environment
The purpose of taking action to address graffiti, vandalism, and flytipping, is in an attempt to    
improve the environment and wellbeing of the community.

6.6 Implications for partner organisations?
The multi-agency action plan outlines the individual and collective commitments from   
agencies to respond to the issues in the petition. 

Page 15

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilplan/


Report author(s):
Beverley Massey

Name and job title:
Beverley Massey – Community Safety Officer

Directorate:
People Directorate

Tel and email contact:
02476 832804  
Beverley.massey@coventry.gov.uk
 

Contributor/approver 
name

Title Directorate or 
organisation

Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:
Usha Patel Governance 

Services Officer
Resources 
Directorate

14.12.2015 15.12.2015

Andrew Walster Assistant 
Director Place

Place Directorate 14.12.2015

Craig Hickin Head of 
Environmental 
Services

Place Directorate 14.12.2015 15.12.2015

Graham Hood Head of 
Streetpride and 
Greenspaces

Place Directorate 14.12.2015

Louise Slevin Information 
Office – 
Community 
Safety 
Partnership

Place Directorate 14.12.2015 15.12.2015

David Joy Licensing & 
Regulatory 
Solicitor, Legal 
Services

Resources 
Directorate

14.12.2016 15.12.2016

Names of approvers for 
submission: (officers and 
members)
Finance: Cath Crosby Lead 

Accountant
Resources 
Directorate

14.12.2015 15.12.2015

Legal: Helen Lynch Legal Services 
Manager (Place 
& Regulatory)

Resources 
Directorate

14.12.2015 15.12.2016

HR: Jas Bilen Business 
partner (Service 
Support)

Resources 14.12.2015 15.12.2015

Andrew Walster Assistant 
Director

Place Directorate 14.12.2015

Martin Yardley Director Place Directorate 14.12.2015
Members: Name
Cllr Abdul Khan Cabinet Member 

Culture, Leisure, 
Sports & Parks

07.01.2016 07.01.2016

Page 16



This report is published on the Council's website:
www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings 

Page 17

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings
http://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings


Appendices

Page 18



Strathmore Avenue Action Plan

November 2015

ISSUE ACTION TAKEN NEXT ACTION STEPS LEAD TIMESCALE
Parking Services to pay 
attention to the area.

Parking Services to continue 
to pay attention to the area.

CCC – Parking Services – Paul 
BOWMAN

30th November 2015 then on 
going.

Speeding vehicles and 
parked cars - Acacia Avenue.

A Community Speedwatch to 
be offered, this will depend 
on members of the 
Community coming forward 
to undergo training and 
participate in the planned 
operations.

Recruit to the Community 
Speedwatch programme.  
Plan and execute a 
Speedwatch Operation.

The community speedwatch 
(17th Dec) saw 278 cars pass 
through.  Highest speed was 
28 mph.  Feedback from 
those carrying out the 
operation was that the 
perception of speed was 
greater than the actual 
speed.  

Further suggestion: 
reducing the speed limit 
to 20 mph. The road is 
narrowed due to cars 
parking both side of the 
road. This in turn causing 
issues for cars turning 
onto Acacia Avenue from 

WMP – Neighbourhood 
Team – Sgt. Tim ROBERTS

1st January 2016.

1st speedwatch will be 17th 
December 2015.

Training for other individuals 
that would be interested in 
taking part will be from 31st 
January 2016.

P
age 19



Strathmore Ave due to 
their sight being 
restricted.

Visit to local schools, to 
highlight the dangers of 
speeding vehicles and 
parked cars and general road 
safety, to pupils.

Continue to visit schools and 
engage with pupils, staff and 
parents.

WMP – Neighbourhood 
Team – Sgt Tim ROBERTS 
and Schools Liaison Officer – 
Rachel DAVENPORT

At the earliest opportunity 
but by 31st December 2015.

Litter and rubbish – highway 
and Greenspaces around the 
area.

Regular and on going 
cleansing schedule in place 
to be enhanced by a one off 
extra clean in November.
Offer to loan litter picking 
equipment and rubbish bags 
to those residents picking up 
litter in the area.

Ensure that the regular 
cleansing schedule is in 
place.

CCC – Streetscene and 
Greenspaces – Martin SOLLIS

30th November 2015 then on 
going.  

Cleansing schedule is subject 
to a current review so a 
regular cleaning schedule is 
yet to be determined.

Blocked drains causing 
localised flooding – whole 
area.

Drains to be unblocked and 
cleaned.

If the drains are clear, but 
they are still getting regular 
flooding then the issue may 
be one of overall drainage 
capacity, in which case it will 
be referred to the Drainage 
team and or Severn Trent as 
required.

Monitor the status of the 
drains and keep them clear.

CCC – Streetscene and 
Greenspaces – Martin 
SOLLIS, for surface detritus.
CCC – Highways – Pete 
ULLAH, Steve THORLEY, for 
blocked gullies.

31st January 2016 then on 
going.

Private Alleyways – whole 
area.

Initial survey, monitor and 
take action (as / if 
applicable) to improve the 

Monitor and take 
appropriate action as 
required.

CCC – Environmental Crime – 
Martin McHugh

30th November 2015 then on 
going.

P
age 20



state and cleanliness of the 
private alleyways. CCC – Neighbourhood 

Enforcement Team – Simon 
HUTT

Alleyway clearance at rear of 
Strathmore Avenue planned 
for January 2016.

Continue to monitor and 
take action, as applicable.

CCC – Planning Enforcement 
– Marcus FOTHERGILL

31st December 2015 then on 
going.

Absentee Landlords not 
caring for their properties 
degrade the area.

Initial survey of the area, 
obtain details of landlords, 
make representation to the 
landlords (as / if applicable). Consider the use of powers 

in the Housing Act 2004 
(dealing with unfit 
properties).

CCC –  Private Sector 
Housing - Helen CAVES

As applicable.

Students residing in the area 
had parties in recent years, 
creating noise, damage and 
litter.

Work in partnership with the 
Universities and Police to 
highlight issues to students 
and encourage them to 
better integrate with 
Communities.

Continue to work in 
partnership to highlight 
possible issues to the 
students and address issues 
as they arise.

University representative 
officer – Caron McKenna.
WMP – PC Jeanette 
PARTRIDGE

As students first attend  for 
the academic year including: 
‘Freshers’ intake / ‘Freshers’ 
fare (September / October 
2015) then on going, 
particularly as end of terms 
approach, new terms start 
and other notable dates.

Drug users discard their 
paraphernalia in some 
alleyways and on 
greenspaces – St Annes and 
All Saints Church.

Police to patrol the area and 
engage with those using 
drugs.  Collect personal 
information of those causing 
issues and refer them to the 
relevant forums where 
appropriate help and 
support can be offered.

Continue with actions. WMP – Neighbourhood 
Team – Sgt. Tim ROBERTS

Immediate and on going.

General concern for the area 
and the lack of community.

Encourage and support the 
residents to form 
Neighbourhood Watch 
groups in the area.

Continue to support the 
groups as they are formed.

WMP – Neighbourhood 
Team – Sgt Tim ROBERTS, 
Partnership Team – Peter 
STURGEON

31st December 2015 then on 
going.

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 Public report
Cabinet Member 

Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks 21 January 2016
Communities and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board 9 March 2016

Name of Cabinet Member: Cllr Abdul Khan

Director Approving Submission of the report:
Executive Director of People

Ward(s) affected:
All

Title:
Community Grant Fund – 2015/16 Round Two Award Decisions

Is this a key decision?
No

Executive Summary:

The Community Grant Fund is managed by the City Council’s Community Development Service 
within the People Directorate. This report covers Round Two of Grant Fund awards for 2015/16, 
following on from Round One which closed on 30 May 2015.

In Round One, a total of £32,214 was awarded to 22 community and voluntary sector groups.

Round Two of the Grant Fund awards followed the same process as Round One with groups 
invited to apply for a maximum grant of £5000. Round Two 2015/16 Closed on 31 October 2015.

This report provides information and recommendations on applications received during Round 
Two of the process for 2015/16.  

The Community Grant Fund has been a valuable resource for local community and voluntary 
sector groups and has supported the Council’s Asset Based Working Strategy “Active Citizens, 
strong communities”. 

However, as part of the Connecting Communities Report to Cabinet on 26 November 2015, an 
allocation process was agreed for a one-off £500,000 Transition Fund to support delivery of the 
Connecting Communities approach as a whole; across its different phases. The Fund will 
support work with residents and communities in mitigating the impact of Council budget 
reductions and in developing new approaches to delivering support to communities within the 
City. Key criteria for award include the need for a clear plan for the proposals to deliver improved 
outcomes within available resources. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



The Transition Fund will support community initiatives in a way that delivers savings designed to 
achieve the best value for money for Council taxpayers. 

On this basis, on 5 January 2016, as part of a report on a series of changes to the grant 
payments that the Council makes to external organisations, the Council’s Cabinet approved the 
reduction of the Community Grant Fund from £100,000 to £25,000 in 2016/17 with the remaining 
Grant Fund of £25,000 to be managed alongside and as part of the Transition Fund process 
outlined in the Connecting Communities Cabinet report.  

The Community Grant Fund will reduce to nil thereafter.

As a result the Community Grant Fund will not operate from 2016/17 onwards and this will be 
the last report specifically in relation to the Fund.

Recommendations:

Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks is requested to:

1. Approve payment of grants as recommended by the Officer Evaluation Panel as detailed in 
Table 1 of the report.

List of Appendices included:

1. Grant Criteria Document

Other useful background papers:
None 

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?
Yes – Communities and Neighbourhood Scrutiny Board (4) on 9th March 2016

Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?
No 

Will this report go to Council?
No

Page 24



Report title:   Community Grant Fund – Round two Award Decisions

1. Context (or background)

1.1 Round Two of the Council’s Community Grant Fund for 2015/16 was opened on the 1 
September 2015 and closed on 31 October 2015.

1.2 Round Two was promoted via the Community Development Services, flyers, 
noticeboards, by direct emails to all contacts and through Social Media including Twitter 
and the Council’s website.

1.3 As well as being accessible on the Council website, hard copy applications were 
available at the Council House reception to ensure that they were available to anyone 
who may not have access to a computer. 

1.4 In line with the process followed for Round One, an officer evaluation panel was 
established, to scrutinise Community Grant applications for completeness and 
compliance with application criteria and to inform recommendations for Grant award to 
Cabinet Member.

1.5 The Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks will make all final decisions 
on Grant award. 

1.6 During Round Two of the Community Grant application process, 95 applications were 
received with £325,102.13 worth of funding requests. 

1.7 A total of £54,217 is recommended for Community Grant award (from approved requests 
for funding of £102,057.34) to 34 community groups and organisations. 

1.8 From the Community Grant Fund of £100,000, £13,569 is therefore not recommended for 
allocation. This amount will be used to fund other corporate initiatives.

1.9 A total of 61 applications to the value of £223,044.79 are not recommended for 
Community Grant award. Applications are not recommended for approval for a number of 
reasons including:

 Application criteria not being met including where applications have failed to 
evidence how they will meet the objectives of the scheme.

 Lack of evidence of a plan for on-going sustainability.
 Applications being incomplete or vague in content.
 Monitoring criteria not met for previous Grant awards.
 Where alternative potential funding streams identified.
 Lack of evidence that project supports community cohesion.

1.10 All applicants that are not fully funded as a result of the Grant award process will be 
offered support from a member of the Community Development Service to further 
explore the viability of their project proposals and/or to seek other potential funding 
streams to enable them to be developed. 

1.11 The Community Grant’s aim has been to strengthen the voluntary and community sector 
through enabling local projects and events to be delivered; to enhance asset based 
provision; and to build resilience within communities.

Page 25



1.12 All applicants are required to demonstrate through their applications how they will meet 
at least one of the objectives outlined in the table below through delivery of their project.  
This ensures alignment of outcomes with corporate objectives.

No Objectives

1 Deliver projects that will make Coventry an attractive, cleaner and greener city

2 Support communities to become safer by developing networks and/or partnerships of 
communication, trust and co-operation

3 To improve health and wellbeing in the community

4 To reduce health inequalities in the community and across the city

5 To protect and support the most vulnerable in the local community 

6 To develop active citizens in strong actively engaged and sustainable communities

1.13 On 5th January 2016, the Council’s Cabinet approved a series of changes to the grant 
payments it makes to external organisations. 

1.14 As part of this it was decided to reduce the Community Grant Fund from £100,000 to 
£25,000 in 2016/17 and for this remaining amount to be managed alongside and as part 
of the Transition Fund process outlined in the Connecting Communities report to Cabinet 
on 26th November 2015.

1.15 The Community Grant Fund will reduce to nil thereafter.

1.16 As a result the Community Grant Fund will not operate from 2016/17 onwards and this 
will be the last report in relation to the Fund.

2. Options considered and recommended proposal

2.1 Table One below describes those Grant applications received that have been 
recommended for approval as well as the total amount recommended for approval, in 
part or in full.

2.2 Table Two describes those Grant applications that have been received but are not 
recommended for approval.

2.3 Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks is recommended to approve the 
award of Grant funding described in Table One, all of which meet the approved Grant 
Application criteria (see Appendix 1) and at least one of the objectives.

Table One: Applications recommended for award 
Ward Project Name Brief description of 

project
Amount 

requested 
Amount 

recommended

Binley & 
Willenhall

PC brightness – 
John White 
community centre

To provide new IT 
equipment so that local 
residents have access to 
digital world in a friendly 
environment. 

£4998 £3000

Page 26



Ward Project Name Brief description of 
project

Amount 
requested 

Amount 
recommended

Binley & 
Willenhall

Community crafting 
in Willenhall – Let’s 
Get Crafty 

To develop a larger craft 
group and support a 
growing number of mature 
residents to build 
confidence and reduce 
isolation.

£500 £500

Binley & 
Willenhall

Growing 
Communities – 
Willenhall Wildlife 
Ranger

To attract new users to the 
community allotment 
creating a productive asset 
for users.

£3051 £125

City Wide Men’s cooking and 
wellbeing – Men’s 
shed

To run cooking sessions for 
men suffering from mental 
ill-health to improve 
wellbeing and confidence.

£2620 £2100

City wide Out and About – 
explore the outdoors 
-Sunrise Community 
Solutions 

Working with young people 
from vulnerable areas of 
Coventry – aiming to create 
a sustainable programme 
which builds confidence 
and cohesion.

£3230.10 £2000

City wide Coventry AIMHS 
Veteran Service 
Group (VSG)  - 
Coventry AIMHS Ltd

To support victims and 
veterans suffering from 
post-traumatic stress 
disorder and associated 
mental ill-health.

£4999 £2500

City Wide Winter 
facilities/training 
Hardley Athletic

A new group who are 
supporting vulnerable 
young people. Providing 
opportunities to learn 
football skills and become 
part of a team.

£1300 £1000

City Wide Community Café 
Forum – Coventry 
Warwickshire 
Association for the 
Deaf

Supporting refurbishment of 
a social meeting place for 
people with hearing 
impairments.

£5000 £2000

Earlsdon Trinjen Stronger 
Together

To engage older people 
aged 50 plus living in 
Styvechale and surrounding 
areas that are socially 
isolated.

£646 £400

Earlsdon Hearsall Earlsdon 
Residents 
Association (HERA) 
– restating 

To continue to restore 
street signs. If completed 
this project gives a signal 
that there is a culture of 

£1000 £800

Page 27



Ward Project Name Brief description of 
project

Amount 
requested 

Amount 
recommended

Edwardian signs 'doing it for ourselves' and 
that residents have pride in 
the community and the city.

Earlsdon SENA (South 
Earlsdon 
neighbourhood 
association) – 
community woodland 
management

To continue with community 
project which enhances the 
natural local woodland – 
using volunteers to plant 
seeds and bulbs.

£539.35 £539

Foleshill Older peoples day 
centre – Indian 
community centre

Providing a comfortable 
safe environment for older 
people to come together.

£4945 £600

Foleshill Connecting 
communities - Ekta-
Unity Voluntary 
Organisation

To support the local 
community to have a more 
inclusive, cohesive, self-
supportive, happier and 
healthier society. 

£3000 £1000

Foleshill Creative Designs – 
Hope in Unity Ltd

Creative activities to bring 
people together, giving 
them a shared interest, 
encouraging social 
engagement and reducing 
the risk of isolation.  

£3106.84 £1363

Longford Growing community 
– New Start 4 U 
community interest 
company

To provide advisers and 
counsellors to support 
disadvantaged 
communities. 

£4836 £2000

Longford Bell Green 
Community 
Association – Tea for 
Two Hundred

To purchase a water heater 
which will enable this 
community group to 
continue to meet in a social 
welcoming environment, 
they work to reduce 
isolation and build a strong 
community. 

£1034.80 £1034

Longford Longford Short 
Football

An established project 
which is in need to 
replacing worn out 
equipment, this will support 
the group to become 
sustainable and support 
over 100 users.

£1850 £1250

Lower Stoke ‘Green Gem’ for 
Gosford Park – 
Friends of Gosford 
Park

To purchase outdoor gym 
equipment this will both 
improve the parks usage 
and users health.

£5000 £5000

Page 28



Ward Project Name Brief description of 
project

Amount 
requested 

Amount 
recommended

Lower Stoke Feel Good Friday 
(family film night) – 
St Catherine’s 
church and pastoral 
centre

To offer families an 
environment where they 
can enjoy a family film with 
other families across Stoke 
Aldermoor encouraging 
cohesion.

£1978.49 £1600

Lower Stoke Scout Group 
activities – 78th 
Coventry Scout 
Group

 A new scout group seeking 
equipment,  to offer 
activities for it young 
members and attract more 
young people to join the 
group.

£4394 £822

Lower Stoke Indoor games – 
Stoke Aldermoor 
community centre

To run family activities 
which will improve health, 
well-being and reduce 
social isolation.

£2550.80 £2550

Radford Women’s workout – 
MALFH (More Active 
Living for Health)

Purchase equipment to 
provide active physical 
sessions to both male and 
female to improve health.

£4900 £60

Radford First Aid training 
equipment – 2286 
Arden squadron air 
training corps

To purchase first aid 
equipment which will in turn 
support training 60 plus 
cadets per year. 

£750 £750

Sherbourne Community 
regeneration of 
Nauls Mill Park - 
Friends of Nauls Mill 
Park

To host community 
events/activities in the park.  
Encouraging local people to 
take ownership and build a 
strong asset for future 
users.

£2875 £2875

Sherbourne Art therapy for 
Dementia – Koco 
community resource 
centre

Facilitated therapist and 
volunteers will support 
participants in using art and 
crafts encouraging creativity 
and building confidence.

£2000 £1440

St Michaels  Spoke project – 
Motorvate Uk

Supporting young people to 
learn skills which will aid 
them to carry out bicycle 
maintenance – using their 
own bikes or bikes which 
have been donated to the 
project.

£5000 £800

St Michaels Mountain Life – 
Lower Ford Street 
Baptist church

To run outdoor activities to 
teach young people outdoor 
skills whilst having fun in a 
safe environment. Building 
cohesion in this diverse 
community.

£2344 £2344

Page 29



Ward Project Name Brief description of 
project

Amount 
requested 

Amount 
recommended

St Michaels Life skills through art 
– Arty Folks

Engaging with new 
residents and reducing the 
risk of loneliness, sharing 
new ideas and learning new 
skills.

£5000 £2000

St Michaels Furniture and 
Household appliance  
- up-cycling – Love 
Coventry

To provide training and 
tools so young women can 
learn new skills, assisting 
them into paid work.

£2975 £2975

St Michaels Creative writing 
course - Cherished

Providing create writing 
sessions for vulnerable 
women. The aim is to build 
self-esteem and confidence.

£3500 £1740

St Michaels Laptop to put all 
breathe details on – 
Breathe Easy 
Coventry

To enable the group to keep 
electronic records ensuring 
that details are more 
secure, but also more easily 
accessible when needed.

£400 £400

Upper Stoke Emergency and 
paediatric first aid 
courses – 
Learn2education 
centre 

To provide first aid training 
to people connected to 
voluntary/community 
groups. Expected to reach 
over 40 people per year.

£3500 £3500

Upper Stoke Being active, staying 
healthy, keeping 
safe – Enterprise 
Club for disabled 
people

To introduce new activities 
which will enhance the 
general health and 
wellbeing of users.

£3260 £650

Upper Stoke 
and 
Longford

Increasing testing 
and reducing new 
cases of HIV/AIDS – 
Dumi International 
aid

To recruit a facilitator to run 
events, recruit volunteers 
and engage with 
communities across 
Coventry.

£4973.96 £2500

Total 34 £102,057.34 £54,217

Page 30



Table Two Applications not recommended for award
Ward Project name Brief description Amount 

requested 

Berkswell Coventry 53rd 
Berkswell Scout 
Group

Seeking funds towards a new scout hut – 
existing one is old and no longer fit for 
purpose. Outside city boundary.

£5000

Binley & 
Willenhall

To purchase a new 
trampoline –Central 
Galaxy Coventry 
trampoline club

Purchase additional trampoline which will 
enable more people to participate.

£5000

Binley & 
Willenhall

Music and Art – The 
Grangers club

Hire a musician and artists to show the 
group how to make their instruments, build 
skill and communications skills of the group.

£2385

Binley & 
Willenhall

GAA (Gaelic 
Athletics 
association) 
coaching in schools 
– Roger Casements 
GAA club

To introduce Gaelic football into Coventry 
schools – support new coaches from local 
University to gain experience.

£4814

Binley & 
Willenhall

Community 
Economic 
Development – The 
Highlife centre

To support local residents, business and 
services to achieve real economic change. 

£4789.20

Binley & 
Willenhall

John White 
Community centre – 
Eye of the Tiger

Self- defence classes for women to build 
self-confidence.

£4470

Binley and 
Willenhall

163 Coventry 
Phoenix Squadron,  
air training corps

To purchase a trailer to transport essential 
equipment for outdoor activities and to 
double up as a security box to store 
equipment.

£2900

Cheylesmore Cheylesmore Social 
Club Allotments 
Association – a 
Gardening Club for 
the Cheylesmore 
community

To be able to provide a safe environment 
for the allotmenteers, plus the Cheylesmore 
community visitors invited into the allotment 
area.

£5000

Cheylesmore Cheylesmore Good 
Neighbours

To develop an age friendly reusable model 
for self-sustaining groups whose members 
provide mutual support and encourage and 
drive further membership of like-minded 
individuals and socially isolated older 
people.

£3722

City – 
Hillfields, 
Willenhall, 
Woodend 
and Foleshill

Stop Hate Crime 
project – Coventry 
ethnic minority 
action partnership

Engaging with groups who are more at risk 
of being victims of Hate Crime – provide 
training and explain how to report Hate 
crime.

£5000

Page 31



Ward Project name Brief description Amount 
requested 

City Wide Shiamak Dance – 
AB3D

To fund a renowned Bollywood 
choreographer to deliver 10 dance 
workshops.

£3885

City wide Dare to Care – 
action for 
community 
empowerment and 
development

To fund a co-ordinator who will engage with 
12 community leaders from the Black and 
Minority Ethnic community – improve the 
health of at least 24 people.

£3006

City wide Keep calm and 
become a volunteer 
– Coventry and 
Warwickshire friend

To advertise for new volunteers who are 
able to support people with mental health.

£3895

City wide Elders project – 
Tamarind centre

To provide activities for older Black and 
Minority Ethnic, predominantly Caribbean 
community.

£5000

City wide Men’s recovery 
shed and other 
stories – Men’s 
shed

To make a short film which can be used to 
support organisations working with men in 
recovery.

£620

Foleshill CSSVD – Coventry 
Shri Sidhi Vinayagar 
Devasthanam - 
dance

Aim to use Partha Nattiyam dance style as 
a mechanism to attract and engage young 
people in four age groups.

£2650

Foleshill Shree Mandhata 
Samaj Coventry 
healthy lifestyle

To run sessions where people can attend 
and be healed using Sai Vibrionics, 
exercises to maintain good health.

£5000

Foleshill Women’s Pathways 
– FWT (Foleshill’s 
Women’s Training 
Ltd)

Using digital literacy to break down barriers 
within Black and Minority Ethnic 
communities – at the same time increase 
use of digital technology.

£4999

Foleshill The Roma project To purchase IT equipment, laptops, printer 
and rent – all will support an existing project 
with the main aim of supporting the Roma 
community.

£2418

Foleshill My destiny in my 
youth – Pillar of Fire

A musical extravaganza for young people 
aged 13 to 24 years.

£3295

Foleshill , St 
Michaels

Free lunch on 
Jesus- RCCG Holy 
Ghost Zone 
Coventry

To deliver 600 hampers to families within 
Foleshill by 19 December 2015.

£5000

Henley Building Stronger 
Relationships – 
Association Kuunga 

To run 7 events for young women 16 – 25 
years, to encourage cooking and healthy 
lifestyles.

£5000

Page 32

../../cvmmc010/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/4%20Received%20App%20Round%202%2015%20-16/Shree%20Mandhata%20Samaj%20Coventry/Community_Grant_Fund_Application.pdf
../../cvmmc010/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/4%20Received%20App%20Round%202%2015%20-16/Shree%20Mandhata%20Samaj%20Coventry/Community_Grant_Fund_Application.pdf


Ward Project name Brief description Amount 
requested 

community in 
Coventry

Holbrooks, 
Bablake and 
Radford

Street Aware-
Sevenco training 
CIC

To support schools across Coventry in 
raising awareness of the effects of 
substance misuse.

£4950

Longford Bell Green Craft 
Club

To purchase an embroidery machine – this 
would benefit all users and take the group 
to a new learning level.

£4495

Longford Community group 
development – New 
Start 4 U community 
interest company

To support disadvantaged Eastern 
European communities and other countries. 

£4968

Longford Bell Green 
community 
Association

To purchase new lawn mower to improve 
centre outdoor environment.

£2199.99

Longford – 
city wide

Snowbies – activity 
club Coventry Ltd

To reduce isolation for the more mature 
child minders of Coventry.

£821.60

Lower Stoke Deserving fund for 
disadvantage 
children – Coventry 
Sea Cadet Unit

To support young people from 
disadvantaged families to access training 
and courses. 

£1000

Out of city Ubuntu Festival – 
Mbola productions 
Ltd

Bringing people together to experience 
African arts and culture.

£1500

Out of City Young leader/adult 
training – Girls 
Brigade Heart of 
England

To support a training weekend for young 
and adult leaders.

£160

Sherbourne Mobile makerspace 
– Coventry 
Makerspace CIC

To take the programme to schools and 
communities, providing access to tools that 
they may not otherwise access.

£5000

Sherbourne The Notables – 
Smile through music

To support the members of the Notables 
Band in their efforts and commitment to 
expand and improve their music and 
performance skills.

£5000

Sherbourne The Notables – 
Reaching out 
through music

To enable members of the Notables Band 
to build bridges with the wider community 
through performing their music at several 
local festivals.

£3350

Page 33



Ward Project name Brief description Amount 
requested 

Sherbourne Coundon Care 
Centre charity 

To support the programme by funding rent 
and wages.

£5000

Sherbourne Albany Theatre 
Trust – Spon End 
festival 

To support a community festival by funding 
technical support.

£5000

Sherbourne Youth mechanical 
workshop – 
Motorcycle Riders 
Association

To support young people to understand and 
maintain their motorcycles.

£3000

Sherbourne – 
St Micheals

Coventry AIMHS 
walking group

To support people with mental ill-health to 
continue with physical activities throughout 
the winter months.

£750

St Michaels Reboot and Release 
– CSC Bardsley 
work club

To run two courses which will supporting 
unemployed people to build confidence and 
progress into work.

£5000

St Michaels Succeed project – 
Working Activity To 
Change Hillfields 
(WATCH)

To provide training in radio and media to 
the unemployed by providing them with 
transferable skills.

£5000

St Michaels Holiday activities for 
young children – 
Coventry Boys and 
Girls club

Activities for children aged 8 to 13 years 
including sports, drama, art and cooking.

£5000

St Michaels Display stands and 
A boards – 
Charterhouse 
association 
Coventry

To have specially made ‘A’ Frame display 
boards to use during open days.

£1800

St Michaels Arty- Folks – Starley 
house community

To run craft workshops for local residents 
and encourage the community to continue 
with the programme.

£2500

St Michaels Routes to 
employment, job 
ready and medial 
training - Radio Plus 
(Coventry and 
Warwickshire Media 
Community Ltd)

To help with promoting 2016 programme to 
help up to 30 NEET (Not in Employment, 
Education or Training) young people. 

£5000

Page 34



Ward Project name Brief description Amount 
requested 

St Michaels Self – Health – 
Somali Cultural 
Resource centre

To run workshops and activities for men 
and women with the aim of improving their 
life styles and mental health.

£4930

St Michaels Your little bit of good 
– Reconciliation  
team

To help build a culture of peace for 
Coventry and the wider world.

£5000

St Michaels – 
City Wide

Eyefull Media CIC To produce an online film to promote third 
sector groups who support people with 
mental ill-health after leaving statutory 
services.

£3500

St Michaels – 
city wide

Arty Folks – social 
prescribing pilot 
project

To develop a ‘Social Buddies’ service to 
support existing service.

£4800

St Michaels - 
Longford

Reading Buddies – 
Abrahams seed

To appoint a project co-ordinator from 
existing trustees to work as a mentor for 
young children whose first language is not 
English.

£3993

St Michaels – 
Spon end, 
Cheylesmore, 
Earlsdon, 
Radford and 
Foleshill

The DMS (Destiny 
Moulding Summit) 
experience – RCCG 
CRA Coventry 
(Redeemed 
Christian Church of 
God Covenant 
Restoration 
Assembly)

To identify young people who are 
unemployed, under employed or at risk of 
unemployment and support them into work.

£3660

St Michaels 
and Foleshill

Geet Sangeet group 
– Amity Enterprises

To provide activities to people with 
Dementia. 

£4450

St Michaels 
and Foleshill

Positive 
Connections

To support a festival – music, dance, 
poetry, storytelling and literacy workshops 
to promote diversity and social cohesion 
within Coventry.

£2900

St Michaels, 
Foleshill, 
Henley

Child at Heart – 
Rescue the Pure 
Children UK

Awareness raising programme to increase 
understanding of the impact of poverty on 
children in Coventry.

£2462

Upper Stoke Kabaddi tournament 
Coventry – Coventry 
Asian sports 
federation

Annual one day event that attracts 
hundreds of participants and has been 
running since the 1960’s.

£5000

Upper Stoke, 
Foleshill

Alone we can do so 
little, together we 
can do so much - 
FC Eagles Coventry 

To deliver 2 family days, providing activities 
for the family to try out together.

£2900

Page 35



Ward Project name Brief description Amount 
requested 

Upper Stoke, 
Longford, 

Testing and 
Reducing new 
cases of HIV and 
AIDS – Dumi 
International aid

Seeking funds to pay for premises for 12 
months.

£600

Wainbody – 
city wide

Finham community 
orchard – Coventry 
Tree Warden 
network

To create a community orchard with 
support from local residents.

£2650

Westwood Forest school 
programme

To create woodland within the school 
grounds by purchasing trees and poor 
weather clothing for children.

£5000

Westwood Group events – Tile 
Hill Village residents 
group

To improve community engagement by 
offering events/fetes and environmental 
improvements.

£2000

Whoberley Inspiring Women – 
The Inspirational 
Club

To support women who are facing isolation 
through a change in life style.

£3845

Woodlands The Garden project 
– Tile Hill North 
residents 
association

To purchase gardening tools with a view to 
tiding communal areas.

£1012

Woodlands – 
city wide

Young Peace 
Ambassadors – 
Normandy Day UK

Engage veterans and refugees with young 
people in Coventry.

£5000

Total 61 £223,044.79

3. Results of consultation undertaken:

3.1 No specific formal consultation has been undertaken for Round 2 of the 2015/16 
Community Grant application process. The process has been undertaken in accordance 
with guidance and evaluation criteria developed as a result of consultation completed in 
2013 and used for Community Grant Fund decisions since this point. 

3.2 Positive impacts have been realised as a result of 2014/15 grant funding. Funding 
awarded to Knitting Needles, a group of older people meeting to chat, promote social 
interaction and reduce isolation is one example of this. The group were awarded £920, 
which they used to fund a more stable venue to meet in and plan future events such as a 
Christmas Fair and group knitting for local charities. They have since been nominated for 
a Queens Award for Voluntary Service and have worked with another local group to 
produce poppies to raise money for the British Legion. 

3.3 A further example is Friends Community Café in Foleshill which was awarded £1350 
from the Community Grant Fund to replace old equipment and support the group to 
continue operating. This has benefited the local community including families, single 

Page 36



parents, older people and people who are vulnerable and homeless. The Cafe opens 
each Saturday, 52 weeks of the year and provides a free meal to an average of 80 
people. 

3.4 The Community Development Service has also actively linked groups who have similar 
interests, resulting in two successful networking sessions. This is with the aim of building 
stronger more resilient groups who, by sharing information and possibly resources, can 
build a network which they can use to influence activities in their local neighbourhood.

 
4. Timetable for implementing:

4.1 Both successful and unsuccessful applicants will be notified of the outcome of their 
Community Grant application subject to Cabinet Member approval. Grant funding will be 
paid to successful applicants by 31 March 2016.

5. Comments from the Executive Director of Resources

5.1 Financial implications

The total Community Grant Budget was £100k. A total of £32,214 was awarded during 
Round One and £54,217 is recommended for award as a result of Round Two. £13,569 
has not been allocated. 

5.2 Legal implications
In making Community Grants, the Council is exercising its general power of competence 
under Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011.The grants will be made under the de minimis 
rule for state aid purposes. A grant aid agreement will be entered into between the 
Council and the applicant organisations.

6.  Other implications

6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's key objectives / corporate 
priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area 
Agreement (or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)?

The Community Grant Fund seeks to support voluntary and community sectors to:
Improve Health and Wellbeing.
Improve the local environment.
Address community safety.
Support and develop cohesive communities.
Develop confidence and resilience within communities.
Increase opportunities for volunteering

All of which support the Council’s key objectives and priorities.

6.2 How is risk being managed?
Risk will be managed through the existing risk management processes and frameworks. 
The Community Development Service will undertake monitoring activity to ensure that all 
successful applicants appropriately utilise their grants in line with Cabinet Member 
(Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks) approval.  

Page 37



6.3 What is the impact on the organisation?
The fund will build on existing strengths within communities to enhance confidence and 
resilience.  In some cases, the projects described in this report will provide residents with 
alternatives to Council provided services, potentially reducing demand. This directly 
supports the “Locally committed” elements of the Council Plan. 

6.4 Equalities / EIA
Equalities impact data is requested as part of the application process. This data is used 
to understand the impact of the Community Grant.  To date, completed equality 
monitoring forms indicate that groups are offering services that are accessible and 
available to a variety of people from different cultures and communities across the city. 

6.5 Implications for (or impact on) the environment
A small number of the projects described will have a positive impact on the local 
environment e.g. enhancement to natural local woodlands and park areas (under 
supervision/support from City Councils parks team).

6.6 Implications for partner organisations?
Partner organisations should realise a positive impact as a result of Community Grant 
funding awards. As communities’ confidence and skills grow they will be less reliant on 
some main stream services thereby freeing up resources.

Report author(s): 

Name and job title:
Michelle McGinty, Head of Involvement and Partnerships

Directorate: 
People

Tel and email contact:
024 7683 1514
michelle.mcginty@coventry.gov.uk  

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.

Contributor/approver 
name

Title Directorate or 
organisation

Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:
Maureen Metcalf Community 

Development 
Team Leader

People 17.12.15 18.12.15

Usha Patel Governance 
Services Officer

Resources 17.12.15 18.12.15

Helen Shankster Insight Team Chief Executives 17.12.15 18.12.15
Paul Jennings Finance 

Manager
Resources 17.12.15 21.12.15

Pete Fahy Director of Adult 
Services

People 17.12.15 22.12.15

Names of approvers for 
submission: (officers and 
members)
Gail Quinton Executive 

Director
People 22.12.15 04.01.16

Page 38

mailto:michelle.mcginty@coventry.gov.uk


Ewan Dewar Finance 
Manager

Resources 17.12.15 22.12.15

Carol Bradford Solicitor Resources 17.12.15 21.12.15
Mick Burn Procurement Resources 17.12.15 22.12.15
Members: Cllr Abdul Khan Cabinet Member 7.1.16 7.1.16

This report is published on the Council's website: www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings 

Page 39

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings


Appendix 1

Coventry City 
Council’s 

Community Grant 
Fund

Criteria 2015-16
Please read carefully before making an application

Grant Criteria

Page 40



Aim of the Community Grant Fund

Coventry City Council has established a grant fund of £100,000 to spend during 2015-2016 on 
community projects. Grants will be available at the discretion of the Council through two rounds 
of funding throughout the year. A timetable for applications is detailed on page 5 of this 
document.

This funding is intended to help Voluntary and Community groups throughout Coventry develop 
their capacity and promote positive sustainable change in neighbourhoods. Projects will be 
expected to enhance the local environment and/or improve the general health and well- being of 
citizens of Coventry. 

This grant fund complements and supports the Council’s objective of encouraging residents to 
“do more for themselves” and increase self-sufficiency. This will help further the development of 
actively engaged, sustainable, resilient communities within Coventry.

 

Page 41



Objectives of the Scheme

This grant scheme seeks to achieve the objectives listed below through building on the strengths 
that exist in our communities.  The application form will ask applicants to identify which of these 
objectives their project will contribute towards, and ask for details of how this will be achieved 
during the lifespan of the project.

 Deliver projects that will make Coventry an attractive, cleaner and greener city

 Support communities to become safer by developing networks and/or partnerships of 
communication, trust and co-operation.

 To improve health and wellbeing in the community

 To reduce health inequalities in the community and across the city

 To protect and support the most vulnerable in the local community

 To develop active citizens in strong actively engaged and sustainable communities

Who can apply?

The grant fund scheme is only open to groups that are based in Coventry. Groups can be, for 
example, youth groups, community development groups, cultural organisations, community 
centre associations, women's groups, residents associations, tenants associations and other 
similar organisations.

The scheme is aimed primarily at projects to develop a culture of 'doing it for ourselves' to 
enhance community resilience and to leave a legacy which will ensure the change/improvement 
is sustained.

Page 42



Eligible Costs: 

Grants may be awarded towards the cost of the following, provided they meet the objectives.

1. Organisation / delivery of events.
2. Seminars or discussion groups.
3. Projects that create sustainable change/improvements.
4. Renting appropriate facilities.
5. Resource materials.
6. Improvements to buildings / IT etc that enhance service delivery opportunities for local 

communities.
7. Action research and small publication costs.

Please note: The maximum award payable to an organisation is £5,000 in any one funding 
round.

Exclusions

Grants will not be paid for: 

1. Political or Religious activities
2. Retrospective events (things that have already happened)
3. Cash generative schemes (where an individual or organisation profits from the award) 
4. Anything that the Council already funds
5. Single person activities
6. Furniture (Internal)

Page 43



Information on Application

Application forms will be available on line at the Council’s website

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/communitydevelopment

or in paper copy from the Council House reception desk.

It is always best to apply as early as possible which will allow time for processing of the 
application, and for any enquiries to be made if necessary. 

Organisations will be restricted to being awarded one grant per round. However, if a group has 
received funding in the past, they will need to demonstrate either that 

1. This is an entirely new application with clear and differing objectives to previous 
applications

2. How additional funds will further develop and enhance earlier achievements for a project 
previously funded.

Applicants should understand that while careful consideration is given to each application, it may 
not be possible to fund all applicants to the extent requested, even if applications come within 
the criteria set out above.  

When to Apply

Round 1: Deadline for applications is 4pm on Sunday 31 May 2015

Round 2: Deadline for applications is 4pm on Saturday 31 October 2015

Details of where to send your application is marked clearly on the application form.

Page 44

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/communitydevelopment


Decision Making Process

No application will be looked at until after the closing date.

Any incomplete applications will be returned without being considered (but can reapply once 
fully completed)

Decisions will be made by the relevant Cabinet Member.

Decisions will be final with no appeals considered.

Successful candidates will be notified within 12 weeks of the deadline date, unless there are 
extenuating circumstances.

Monitoring and Evaluation

All successful applicants will be expected to monitor their achievements, and provide evidence 
of what the grant was spent on (keeping receipts and invoices is essential).

It is a condition of accepting a grant that within 12 months of receipt of the grant you will:

1. Let us know what the grant helped you to achieve     
2. Tell us how your local community benefitted from you receiving the grant
3. Provide detail of how the grant was spent

A monitoring and evaluation form will be sent to all groups with their grant offer letter.  
The grant offer letter will specify conditions of accepting the grant. 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



 Public report
Cabinet Member Report

Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks
                                                                                                                          21 January 2016

Name of Cabinet Member:
Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks – Councillor A Khan

Director Approving Submission of the report:
Executive Director of Resources

Ward(s) affected:
None

Title:
Outstanding Issues Report

Is this a key decision?
No

Executive Summary:

In May 2004 the City Council adopted an Outstanding Minutes System, linked to the Forward 
Plan, to ensure that follow up reports can be monitored and reported to Members. The attached 
appendix sets out a table detailing the issues on which further reports have been requested by 
the Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks so he is aware of them and can 
monitor progress. 

Recommendations:

The Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks is requested to consider the list of 
outstanding issues and to ask the Member of the Management Board or appropriate officer to 
explain the current position on those which should have been discharged at this meeting or an 
earlier meeting.

List of Appendices included:

Table of Outstanding Issues.

Other useful background papers:

None

Has it or will it be considered by Scrutiny?
No

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



Has it, or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or other 
body?
No

Will this report go to Council?
No

Report author(s): Usha Patel

Name and job title: Governance Services Officer

Directorate: Resources

Tel and email contact: 024 7683 3198  
      usha.patel@coventry.gov.uk 

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.

Contributor/approver 
name

Title Directorate or 
organisation

Date doc 
sent out

Date response 
received or 
approved

Contributors:

Other members Not applicable

Names of approvers: 
(officers and members)
Finance: Name Not applicable
Legal: Name Not applicable

This report is published on the council's website:
www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings 

Page 48

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings


Subject Date for Further 
Consideration

Responsible Officer Proposed 
Amendment to Date 
for Consideration

Reason for Request to 
Delay Submission of Report

1 Withdrawal of Council Services from 
Spencer Park Petition - Request that 
the Council keep the Pavilion open for 
at least part of each week in the 2015 
season and to re-open the tennis 
courts and the flat green:  Progress 
report on this work be submitted to a 
future meeting of the Cabinet 
Member  (minute 3/15 refers)

No date specified Andrew Walster 
Assistant Director for 
Streetscene
and Greenspace

Place Directorate

2 Public Space Protection Order 
(Coventry Dog Control)

A review of arrangements after a year of 
operation

(CM(P&E) 18 December 2014 (Minute 
58)

21 January 2016 Executive Director of 
Place

Craig Hickin

Report to be submitted to 
Cabinet following discussions 
with legal

3* Report in response to a petition 
regarding smoking in Hall Lane 

Progress made on recommendations 
made by Cabinet Member for Policing 
and Equalities on 24 September 2015

CM(P&E) 24.9.2015 (Minute 15)

10 December 
2015

21 January 2016

Executive Director of 
Place

Liam Nagle

4 Progress report on the Hillfields 
Community Safety Action Plan

Further report on progress of 
recommendations made at meeting held 
on 23 July 2015

(CM (PE) 23 July 15 (min 7)

21 January 2016

25 February 2016

Executive Director of 
Place

Bev Massey/Liam Nagle

P
age 49



4

5 Place Directorate Enforcement Policy 

Report on outcome of consultation

CM(CLSP) 12 November 2015 (Minute 
16)

21 January 2016

25 February 2016

Executive Director of 
Place

6* Petition concerning environmental 
conditions in Strathmore Avenue

Initial report on petition

21 January 2016 Executive Director of 
Place

P
age 50


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Report in response to a petition regarding smoking in Hall Lane
	5 Response to a petition regarding Anti-Social Behaviour in the Strathmore Avenue area
	Strathmore Avenue Action Plan - November 2015 - appendix

	6 Community Grant Fund - 2015/16 Round Two Award Decisions
	7 Outstanding Issues Report

